
AG
EN

DA 
O

U
TSTAN

DIN
G

 
ACTIO

N
S

STRATEG
IC 

M
ATTERS

CASE REPO
RTS 

FRO
M

 PSC

 

 

 
 

 

MINUTES Meeting date: Monday 26 May 2025 

 
IN ATTENDANCE ONLINE  
Members: 
• Suzanne Vestri (Convener) 
• Malcolm Bell 
• Helen Donaldson 
• Morag Ferguson 
• Lezley Stewart 

Executive Team: 
• Lorna Johnston (Executive Director)  
• Richard Wilson (Case Manager)  

ITEM CONTENT ACTION 
STANDING ITEMS 
1.  APOLOGIES 

No apologies were received. 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

 
  

2.  MATTERS ARISING 
Members noted all matters arising from the last meeting, on 31 March 2025, were complete. 
 
Members noted that a service user had referred a data breach to the Information Commissioner’s 
Office. The Information Commissioner’s office had advised the Standards Commission, by email, 
that it considered the breach presented a low-level risk and was satisfied with steps that had 
been taken to remedy the situation. Members noted it was unclear, from the email whether the 
Information Commissioner considered the Standards Commission should have reported the 
matter, despite also having assessed it as low-risk. Members noted the Information 
Commissioner’s Office had failed to respond to a request for clarity on this, despite a reminder, 
and, as such, the Standards Commission had now made a service delivery complaint. Members 
asked the Executive Team to keep them updated in respect of any response. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 

CONSENT ITEMS 
3.  DRAFT MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

Members reviewed and approved the minute of the meeting on 31 March 2025.   
 

 
 

STRATEGIC MATTERS 
4.  PROMOTING THE ETHICAL STANDARDS FRAMEWORK AND UPDATE ON OUTREACH WORK 

Members noted the outreach work undertaken since the last meeting. Members noted, in 
particular, that since the last meeting: 
• The Executive Director and Case Manager presented a session on the Model Code at the 

College Governance Professionals Steering Group’s annual Development Day on 8 May 2025. 
• The Executive Director attended to answer questions on aspects of the Councillors’ Code at 

an online scrutiny event run by the Improvement Service for elected members of Dumfries 
and Galloway Council on 16 May 2025. 

• The Executive Team met with the Improvement Service on 22 May 2025 to discuss potential 
topics for future joint webinars and also a collaboration with the Open University to develop 
e-Learning induction and training material for councillors.  

 
 
 



2 
 

• The Convener had attended a Local Government Information Unit online global seminar on 
Civility in Public Life.  

 
Members further noted that: 
• The Convener had been invited to a Roundtable on Civility in Public Life event on 28 May 

being convened by COSLA, which was aimed at addressing the pressing issue of targeted 
abuse and intimidation towards elected members. The Roundtable would be Chaired by 
Professor Kezia Dugdale, Associate Director of The Centre for Public Policy, University of 
Glasgow, and invited guests will include the Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local 
Government, and partners from across the third sector, policing, academia and the media. 

• The Executive Director was due to present on the Model Code of Conduct at the Scottish 
Government’s Induction Workshop for new Ministerial Appointees on 4 June 2025. 

• The Executive Director and Case Manager were due to present on the Model Code to board 
members of Ayrshire College in Kilmarnock on 2 September 2025.  

• The Standards Commission has been asked to present on the Model Code to Members of 
Clackmannanshire and Stirling Health and Social Care Integration Joint Board on 24 
September 2025. Members noted the Executive Director was unavailable and agreed that 
Morag Ferguson would deliver the training with the Case Manager. 

 
Members noted they had agreed, at their last meeting that it would be helpful to issue surveys 
to attendees of Standards Commission workshops and training events to further measure the 
organisation’s impact. Subject to some minor amendments, Members agreed the survey 
questions to be issued, via a web link, either by the ‘chat’ function during online events, or by 
email after in-person events. 
 
Members noted the progress made in the year to date against the 2025 Communications Plan. 
 

5.  BUDGET & EXPENDITURE REPORT FULL YEAR 2024/25 
Members noted the report outlining the expenditure in 2024/25 against the final agreed budget 
of £355,533. Members noted an application for £3,300 in contingency funding was made to the 
Scottish Parliamentary Corporate Body (SPCB) in January 2025 when it was anticipated that legal 
expenses awarded to the Standards Commission in respect of an unsuccessful appeal against a 
Hearing decision would not be received by the year-end (31 March 2025). Members noted, 
however, that legal expenses of £10,200 were recovered from the Appellant in March 2025 and 
the SPCB was advised the Standards Commission would not need to drawdown the approved 
contingency funding. 
 
Members noted that, as of 31 March 2025, full year expenditure was £348,723, giving an 
underspend of £6,810. Members noted that this was largely the result of 15 Hearings being held, 
(with eight of these being held online), whereas the budget provided for 16 Hearings (with nine 
of these being online).  
 

 
 
 

6.  PERFORMANCE AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2024/25 
Members reviewed performance in 2024/25 against the agreed key performance indicators and 
percentage targets, as published on the Standards Commission’s website. A report on these 
would be included in the 2024/25 Annual Report. 
 
Members were pleased to note that there had been strong performance against the majority of 
targets.   
 
 
 
 

 



3 
 

BUSINESS MATTERS 
7.  HEARING RULES 

Members agreed to amend the Hearing Rules to remove the provision that allowed for 
Respondents to call witnesses to lead evidence at the mitigation stage (after a breach of the Code 
had been found). Members noted that Respondents did not do so in practice and further 
considered allowing witnesses to provide evidence in person in mitigation was disproportionate 
and could unnecessarily extend Hearings. Members noted that written representations in 
mitigation could still be submitted, along with character references, in advance of hearings, to 
be circulated to the Panel for consideration in the event a breach of the Code was found. In 
addition, Respondent would still be able to make verbal submissions made on mitigation and any 
sanction to be imposed. 
 
Members agreed some other minor changes to provide clarity, particularly in respect of the 
purpose and scope of pre-Hearing meetings.  
 
Members asked the Executive Team to make the amendments, before publishing the revised 
version on the website and sending a copy to the Ethical Standards Commissioner (ESC). 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 

8.  RECORDS MANAGEMENT PLAN ANNUAL REVIEW   
Members noted the Standards Commission’s Records Management Plan outlines how the 
records generated and retained by the organisation are managed. Members noted that the 
National Records of Scotland’s Assessment Team evaluates progress public bodies make against 
their record management plans. Members noted the Assessment Team advised on 14 May 2025 
that, following an assessment, it had concluded the Standards Commission continued to take its 
statutory obligations seriously and was working hard to maintain all elements of its Records 
Management Plan, in full compliance with the Public Records (Scotland) Act 2011.  
 

 
 

9.  FORMAT FOR QUARTERLY NEWSLETTER  
Members noted they had agreed, at a previous meeting to review the format for the Standards 
Commission’s quarterly newsletter.  
 
Members agreed with the proposal to embed the quarterly update in an email, rather than 
sending it as a separate PDF. Members agreed that the email should be sent to Council 
Monitoring Officers and public body Standards Officers, as was the current practice, for onward 
transmission to councillors and members. Members noted this avoided the need for anyone to 
have to subscribe or opt in to receive the newsletter. It also meant that the Standards 
Commission would not need to create and manage a database of all councillors and members 
(with the resulting data protection implications). 
 

 
 
 

10.  SECTION 4 OF ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25 
Members agreed the content for Section 4 of the Annual Report for 2024/25, being the section 
containing information about the Standards Commission’s adjudicatory work.  
 

 
 

11.  HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING  
Members noted the verbal report provided by Ms Ferguson, the Chair of the Human Resources 
Committee, and the draft minutes of the Committee meeting on 7 May 2025.  
 
Members undertook their annual review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference and agreed with 
the Committee that no changes were required.  
 
Members further noted the Committee’s activities during 2024/25 included: 
• Assisting with the induction of three new Members;  
• Conducting one-to-one meetings with staff to seek their views on the work of the 

organisation, particularly in respect of engagement and culture;  

 
 



4 
 

• Providing assurance to the Commission that appropriate and adequate arrangements were 
in place to monitor performance and sickness absence and to encourage development in 
respect of both Members and staff;  

• Overseeing staff attendance and any health and safety issues;  
• Reviewing the performance management and development requirements of staff.  
• Undertaking a staff key person dependency analysis; and  
• Overseeing a Members’ skills analysis.  
 
The Chair confirmed that she was confident that the Committee had discharged its duties 
effectively in 2024/25, in accordance with the Terms of Reference. Members thanked the 
Committee for the substantial amount work it had undertaken in the year. 
 

12.  AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE MEETING   
Members noted the verbal report provided by Ms Donaldson, the Chair of the Audit and Risk 
Committee, and the draft minutes of the Committee meeting on 20 May 2025.  
 
Members undertook their annual review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference and agreed with 
the Committee that no changes were required.  
 
Members further noted the Committee’s activities during 2024/25 included: 
• Reviewing the draft Annual Accounts for approval by the Standards Commission; 
• Reviewing the Risk Register and identifying and reviewing actions to be taken to mitigate 

risks; 
• Recommending changes to the Risk Register and the individual risk scores in light of 

developments and actions taken; 
• Suggesting risks and mitigating actions to be included in the Risk Register for 2025/26; 
• Reviewing and recommending the external audit plan (including the timetable and fee);  
• Reviewing internal and external audit reports and any management responses; and 
• Reviewing the budget bid for 2025/26;  
 
Members noted that the Committee had reviewed the Risk Register for 2024/25. Members 
agreed with the Committee’s recommendations in respect of some amendments to the 
probability score for one of the risks, in light of actions taken to date. Members asked the 
Executive Team to update the Risk Register accordingly. 
 
The Committee’s Chair confirmed that she was confident that the Committee had discharged its 
duties effectively in 2024/25, in accordance with the Terms of Reference.  Members thanked the 
Committee for the substantial amount work it had undertaken in the year. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 

CASES UPDATE 
13.  REPORTS FROM THE ESC & SECTION 14 LETTERS 

(a) LA/S/4159: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a Stirling Councillor. 
 
(b) LA/Fi/4101: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a Fife Councillor. 

 
(c) LA/As/4209: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to an Aberdeenshire 
Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000. 

 
(d) LA/NL/4154: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a North Lanarkshire Councillor. 

 
(e) LA/AB/4099: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about an Argyll and Bute Councillor. 

 



5 
 

 
(f) LA/AB/4081: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to an Argyll and 
Bute Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000. 

 
(g) LA/WL/3903:  Members noted that, following receipt of a referral report, the Standards 
Commission had directed the ESC to conduct further investigation in respect of a complaint about 
a West Lothian Councillor. 

 
(h) LA/As/4209: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about an Aberdeenshire Councillor. 

 
(i) LA/H/4028: Members noted that, following receipt of a referral report, the Standards 
Commission had directed the ESC to conduct further investigation in respect of a complaint about 
a Highland Councillor.  

 
(j) LA/NA/4086: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to an North 
Ayrshire Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 
2000. 

 
(k) LA/WL/4188: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about a West Lothian Councillor. 

 
(l) LA/NA/4080: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about a North Ayrshire Councillor. 

 
(m) LA/AC/4206: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about an Aberdeen City Councillor. 

 
(n) LA/NA/4211: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about a North Ayrshire Councillor. 

 
(o) LA/I/4085: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about an Inverclyde Councillor. 

 
(p) LA/G/4115: Members noted that, following receipt of a referral report, the Standards 
Commission had directed the ESC to conduct further investigation in respect of a complaint about 
two Glasgow City Councillors. 

 
(q) LA/H/4113:  Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a Highland Councillor. 
 

14.  CASES 
(a) LA/H/3969: Members noted that a Hearing was held on 15 April 2025. The Respondent was 
found to have breached the Code and was suspended for two months. Members noted that the 
Council had confirmed that it had formally considered the decision, in accordance with Section 
18 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000. 

 
(b) NB/CC/3976: Members noted that a Hearing was held on 30 April 2025. The Respondent was 
found to have breached the Code and was censured. Members noted that the Crofting 
Commission had confirmed that it had formally considered the decision at a meeting on 22 May 
2025, in accordance with Section 18 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 
2000. 

 
(c) LA/Fa/3910: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place online on 5 June 
2025. 

 



6 
 

 
(d) LA/AC/3994: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 18 June 2025 in 
the Town House, Aberdeen. 

 
(e) LA/As/4024: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 1 July 2025 in 
Aberdeenshire Council Headquarters, Aberdeen. 

 
(f) LA/NL/3978: Members noted that North Lanarkshire Council had confirmed that it had 
formally considered a decision the Standards Commission made at a Hearing held on 10 
December 2024. 

 
(g) LA/An/4168: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 17 July 2025. 
 
(h) LA/AC/3986: Members noted that Aberdeen City Council had confirmed that it had formally 
considered a decision the Standards Commission made at a Hearing held on 4 February 2025. 
 

15.  INVESTIGATIONS EXCEEDING 3 MONTHS – INTERIM REPORTS 
(a) LA/I/4085: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about an Inverclyde Councillor had taken more than six months to 
investigate. 
 
(b) LA/NA/4211: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a North Ayrshire Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 
(c) LA/EL/4051: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about an East Lothian Councillor had taken more than six months 
to investigate. 

 
(d) LA/G/4223: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Glasgow City Councillor had taken more than three months 
to investigate. 

 
(e) LA/G/4182: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Glasgow City Councillor had taken more than six months 
to investigate. 

 
(f) LA/E/4130: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a City of Edinburgh Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 
(g) LA/H/4146: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Highland Councillor had taken more than three months to 
investigate. 

 
(h) LA/I/4235: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about an Inverclyde Councillor had taken more than three months 
to investigate. 

 
(i) LA/E/4189: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a City of Edinburgh Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 

 
 
 
 



7 
 

(j) LA/G/4203: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Glasgow City Councillor had taken more than three months 
to investigate. 

 
(k) LA/G/4115: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Glasgow City Councillor had taken more than six months 
to investigate. 

 
(l) NPA/C/4143: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about Cairngorms National Park Authority member had taken 
more than three months to investigate. 
 
(m) LA/AB/4147: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about an Argyll and Bute Councillor had taken more than six 
months to investigate. 
 
(n) LA/DG/4041:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a Dumfries and Galloway Councillor had taken more than 
nine months to investigate. 

 
(o) LA/H/4113:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Highland Councillor had taken more than six months to 
investigate. 

 
(p) LA/G/4139:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Glasgow City Councillor had taken more than six months 
to investigate. 

 
(q) LA/G/4216:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Glasgow City Councillor had taken more than three months 
to investigate. 

 
(r) LA/S/4221:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Stirling Councillor had taken more than three months to 
investigate. 

 
(s) LA/NL/4142:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a North Lanarkshire Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 
 

16.  FEEDBACK INCLUDING ANY HEARINGS SURVEY RESPONSES 
(a) Members noted the Hearings Survey received on 28 March 2025. 
 
(b) Members noted the Hearings Survey received on 22 April 2025. 

 
(c) Members noted the positive feedback received from the College Development Network 
following a training session delivered by the Executive Director and Case Manager. 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
17.  MEMBERS’ PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS 

Convener noting that all performance appraisals had been completed.   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



8 
 

 

JUNE 2025 TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT SESSION 
Members agreed that they would use the session to present to each other, and answer questions 
on, sections of the standards training presentation on the Councillors’ Code of Conduct, in order 
to both practise their skills for outreach events and as part of refresher training on its provisions. 
 
ANY EMERGING RISKS  
None identified. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT SCS MEETING 
Members agreed to advise the Executive Director of any items to be included in the agenda for 
discuss at the next meeting. 
 

 
 
 

18.  2025/26 DIARY DATES AND WORKPLAN 
Members noted the diary dates and ongoing workplan.  
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
Members noted that the next meeting of the Standards Commission was scheduled to take place 
online on Monday, 28 July 2025.  
 

 
 
 


	MINUTES Meeting date: Monday 26 May 2025
	APOLOGIES
	No apologies were received.


